
Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday, January 16th, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the January 16th, 2024, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
b. Mail  •York County Sheriff’s Monthly Report  •SMPDC Letter  •Red Cross Letter

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 1/2/2023

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #26 in the amount of $29,014.81
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #27 (FY2024) in the amount of $60,675.46

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Discuss next steps, Updates from Tony/Brad. Tabled from last meeting –

Schedule Public Hearing for Ordinance Amendments
b. MDOT Request approval for transporting materials, project on Rt 202, Updates attached
c. Cemetery Committee – Chadborn Cemetery – Waiting on updates
d. Discuss chain of communications

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner –
b. Fire Chief –
c. CEO – Quarterly Report
d. Tax Collector – Monthly Report
e. Bunganut Park Committee –
f. Treasurer –
g. Town Manager –
h. Other  -

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discuss Agenda format changes

OTHER 

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURN 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail





ITEM #2: (b.) Mail





32 N Prospect St 2 Maitland St 2401 Congress St  
Burlington, VT 05401 Concord, NH 03301 Portland, ME 04101 

www.redcross.org/nne 
American Red Cross of Northern New England 

January 11, 2024 

Town of Lyman 
Attn: Select Board 
11 So. Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Dear Members of the Select Board, 

As we look ahead to the new year, we take a moment to reflect on our profound gratitude to the 
municipal partners who help us deliver our lifesaving mission in our community. With your 
support, we are able to ensure the health, safety, and preparedness of our friends and neighbors 
throughout Northern New England. 

Last year, our staff and volunteer workforce provided an array of services throughout the 
Northern New England region:  

 We made 700 homes safer by installing 2,177 smoke detectors and educating 897
families about fire safety and prevention through our Home Fire Campaign.

 Trained 42,950 people in first aid, CPR, and water safety skills. (training data for
county level)

 We collected over 133,100 units of blood. Hospitals throughout Northern New
England depend on the American Red Cross for these collections.

 In our region, over 3,400 service members, veterans, and their families received
supportive services through our Service to the Armed Forces department.

Your American Red Cross remains committed to providing relief and support. We do this with 
the help of our incredible volunteers and donors, including you, our friends in Lyman. This 
year, we respectfully request a municipal appropriation of $1,000.00. These funds will 
directly benefit individuals and families right here in our region, who benefit from our unique 
services at no cost. 

For more information about the work we’ve been doing in your area, please refer to the attached 
Service Delivery sheet for York County. If you have any questions, please call us at 1-800-464-
6692 or supportnne@redcross.org.  

Warmly, 

Lauren Jordan 
Development Coordinator 

ITEM #2: (b.) Mail



��������	 
������������ ������������������ � ����� !" # $� ���%&�� ' �'��()&� * ��+� &) , *-&�� .�/��)�� � 01����2��" * 31 ))��4 � ,5�26�&� � #5 7�� !" � �

�8��9������	�:���;�
����	<��	�=>�?@??�A�<���B@>�?@?B

CDEF�GHDIJ�KHL�MINEE�EFDOODPL�QNRSPFHHIE�TNIUHLFVINSWVNSF�XNIU�MNSPFG�FNHLSYDFH�IHEZLHPFE�NP�OZIHJEDOHFG�DPL�[IH[DIHLPHEE\]H�̂DLH�_̀�abcde�efgdh�iGVHR[ZPW�OD̂ ZRZHE�LHQHRN[Ĥ HIWHPYG�HQDYSDFZNP�[RDPE\
j�k�l�����km��n� ]H�YNRRHYFHL�opqor�[ZPFE�NORZOHEDQZPW�iRNNL�DF�_s_�LIZQHE�ZPXNIU�MNSPFG\t�����
����

XNIU�MNSPFG�ZE�VN̂ H�FN�__q�ucdhvwfxydz�{hbee�|b}~x�ddhe\�]H�VDQHQNRSPFHHIE�OIN̂ �DRR�TDRUE�NO�RZOHJ�TVNDIH�FIDZPHL�DPL�Ĥ [NTHIHL�FN�IHE[NPLFN�LZEDEFHIE�ZP�FVH�̂ZLLRH�NO�FVH�PZWVFJFN�FHDYV�EDOHFG�YNSIEHEJ�FN�VHR[�DF�NSI^DPG�iRNNL�LIZQHEJ�DPL�EN�̂SYV�̂NIH\�VH��̂ HIZYDP�KHL�MINEE�ZE�[INSL�FVDF����NO�ZFE�EFDOO�ZE�̂DLH�S[�NOQNRSPFHHIE��FVHG�DIH�FISRG�FVH�VHDIF�DPLENSR�NO�NSI�NIWDPZ�DFZNP\

�������n�:���;�CDEF�GHDIJ�_p�sq��bh��{b~x��hdevzdx�e�THIH�FDSWVF�D�QDIZHFG�NOẐ[NIFDPF�RZOHEDQZPW�EUZRRE�ESYV�DE�ZIEF��ZLJ�M�KJ��DiGEZFFZPW��UZRREDPL�]DFHI��DOHFG\���������:���;�]H�[INSLRG�DEEZEFHL�_���NO��bh��{b~x���e��dh�vwd�dc�dhep��d�dhfxep�fxz��advhgfcv}vde�iG�[INQZLZPWĤ HIWHPYG�YN̂ ^SPZYDFZNPEDPL�NFVHI�EHIQZYHEJ�ZPYRSLZPWYNSPEHRZPW�DPL�OZPDPYZDRDEEZEFDPYH\�
:���;���������k��l��;�


���������m����P�FVH�[DEF�GHDIJ�FVH��̂ HIZYDP�KHL�MINEE�VDE�IHE[NPLHL�FN�s��zvefe�dh�wfede�ZP��bh��{b~x��J�[INQZLZPWDEEZEFDPYH�FN�_���vxzv�vz~f}e\��NEF�YN̂ ^NPRGJ�FVHEH�ZPYZLHPFE�THIH�VN̂ H�OZIHE\�KHL�MINEE�TNIUHIE�THIH�NPFVH�EYHPH�FN�[INQZLH�ONNLJ�YRNFVZPWJ�RNLWZPWJ�Ĥ NFZNPDR�ES[[NIFJ�DPL�̂NIH�FN�OD̂ ZRZHE�LSIZPW�FVHZI�VNSIE�NOWIHDFHEF�PHHL\��SI�FHD̂ E�DREN�[INQZLH��DEE�MDIH�FN�OZIEF�IHE[NPLHIE\��VZPWE�RZUH�ONNLJ�TDFHIJ�DPL�TDÎLIZPUE�EFIHPWFVHP�FVH�iIDQH�[HN[RH�NO�GNSI�RNYDR��ZIH�DPL��NRZYH��H[DIF̂HPFE�DE�FVHG�DPETHI�FVH�YDRR�FN�UHH[GNSI�IHEZLHPFE�EDOH\�� ��������	 
������������ �����������5476� � *�&�)������ !" � *�&�)�� 6)��2&�& � ,¡!�6��¢6�" � �¡���¡�!�6�����6!� * *¢6�.&�.% ��� � ,£6!& , *£6�%&�� ' �' �.)����% ��� � �



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/ 

Selectboard members present: Rusty “Ralph” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair), Jessica Picard, 
Amber Swett, Victoria Gavel 
Selectboard members absent: None 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Funky Bow Public Hearing – Re-Application for Special Amusement Permit

Ralph Blackington – Opens the public hearing and asks for public comment. There is no public
comment. The public hearing closes at 6:03pm.
Thomas Hatch – Motions to approve the Special Amusement Permit for Funky Bow.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0.

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others
Joe Wagner – States if having a law enforcement officer present at Elections is a requirement of the
State, the Town can seek to have the State reimburse the Town for costs. Asks that the Planning
Board vacancy be filled by the process recommended by the Town Manager with the involvement of
two planning board members. He is unclear about the mileage reimbursement policy, as to which
employees are eligible for the reimbursement. With regard to appointment of Town Clerk, hopefully
the person appointed to the position of town clerk will have will have had substantial experience in
conducting elections such that direct supervision and oversight will not be necessary.
Lindsay Gagne – States to the comment of having law enforcement present at Elections, this is a
requirement of RSU57 because the Town is using their building and they would prefer there are
protective measures in place to monitor the use of the building. If at any time there are questions,
residents are welcome to contact the Town Manager.

b. Mail  •Alfred/ Lyman Monthly Report York County Sheriff’s    •LHS Letter

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 12/4/2023

Amber Swett – Motions to approve the minutes. Victoria Gavel seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Review / Approve meeting minutes 12/21/2023

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve the minutes. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #24 in the amount of $25,661.13

Victoria Gavel – Motions to approve. Thomas Hatch seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #25 (FY2024) in the amount of $611,335.39

Thomas Hatch – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Discuss next steps, Updates from Tony/Brad. Tabled from last meeting

No new updates

Page 1 of 8

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

b. MDOT Request approval for transporting materials, project on Rt 202, waiting on updates
Lindsay Gagne – States there is preconstruction meeting scheduled January 5th, the board has been
invited to attend.
Ralph Blackington – States he is interested and planning on attending.

c. Giving Committee – Project Statement
Jessica Picard – Verifies this committee could be self-funded in some ways and donation based.
Victoria Gavel – States she has concerns about confidentiality.
Lindsay Gagne – States the committee would not be collecting personal information but would be
working towards fundraising events. There is language in the project statement and code of ethics
pertaining to responsibility of confidentiality. This could be an adhoc committee initially and later
could be established as a standing committee.
Amber Swett – Motions to accept the Giving Committee’s Project Statement.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 4-0-1 (Thomas Hatch, Ralph Blackington, Jessica Picard, Amber Swett in favor.
Victoria Gavel opposed).

d. Cemetery Committee – Chadborn Cemetery
Amber Swett – States some concerns that town funds were used for a private entity.
Thomas Hatch – Suggests sending a memo to the committee.

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner –

Thomas Croteau – States he has been cleaning up hanging trees in the roads and helped clean up
the vandalism at Kennebunk Pond. The culvert at Fryes Bridge Road will need to be replaced. He
plans on doing the repair on January 15th. Project should take a day and the road will need to be
temporarily closed, but they will try to keep at least one lane open as much as they can.

b. Fire Chief – none
c. CEO –

Brenda Charland – States she has put together a report. She submits a report to the Board. She’s
developed a good working relationship with the Electrical Inspector, the Assessor and Fire Chief.
She’s been looking at the Fee Structure and comparing it with other Towns and would like to keep
an eye towards user fees supporting the department and not derived from taxpayers as much as
possible. She asks the board if they want her to look at configuring the fee schedule and see if they
can bring it up a little more. The board has some discussion and agrees to review updating the fee
schedule.

d. Tax Collector – November Report – Reviewed in Agenda Packet
e. Bunganut Park Committee –

Michelle Feliccitti – States the Committee met with a landscape architect to go over a suggestions
for the committee to start looking into. It was recommended that the Town consider getting a
topographical survey and wetland delineation, at least in the area where Improvements will be
considered. This way a landscape architect will be able to use this information in developing a plan.
They have collected quotes. One came in for the topographical survey for approximately $3,500.
Wetlands delineation would require a soil scientist, which will likely add more costs.

f. Treasurer –  Expense Report – Reviewed in Agenda Packet
g. Town Manager – Progress Report

Lindsay Gagne – States as an update to the notes, there were power outages from the last storm
that caused some issues. It was discovered that the server room and AC unit in the server room was
not hooked up to the Panel for the generator. They can, however, run on battery but the room will
get very hot. After talking with the Electrical Inspector, it was verified the Town will need to invest in
a larger generator to meet the need of adding more items to the panel. An alternative would be to

Page 2 of 8

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

take some things off the panel to add the server room, but that may mean we’d have to close the 
Town Hall in events of power outage. Review of progress notes in agenda packet.  

h. Other  -
Thomas Hatch – States there was vandalism at Kennebunk Pond recently and he had chosen to
close the gate for now where there is no ice fishing right now.
Amber Swett – States she was at an Eco Maine meeting, and they are going to be voting on going
out for a bond for planning design, construction modification, repairs and improvements to their
new MRF. They will be voting January 8th.

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discuss chain of communications

Amber Swett – States she attended the Municipal Officers Webinar Training where they discussed
boards having a chain of communication. One example that was provided was more of a code of
conduct for the Town of Hallowell. She suggests the Board consider clarifying some chain of
communication.
Lindsay Gagne – States it was brought to the board’s attention by a former charter commission
member that had stated to the board one of the reasons the commission considered a Town
Manager plan was because at the time there were instances of elected officials going to employees
directly. The idea of a Town Manager was to have a point person to help with directions and
process. For example, there are no longer complaints addressed on the agenda, because issues can
now be addressed with the Town Manager and brought to the board when appropriate. It would be
a good idea to establish a clear process. The board could table the item but would be good to keep
workshopping ideas.

b. Funky Bow – Review/Approve State Liquor License.
Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Thomas Hatch seconds. Motion Passes: 5-0-0

c. Board/Committee Resignations – Planning Board, ORC, RSU#57
Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept resignation of Michael Rancourt from the ORC.
Victoria Gavel – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept the resignation of Rod Tetu from Planning Board.
Amber Swett – Seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0.
Thomas Hatch – Motions to accept the resignation of Norm Dubois from RSU#57 School Board.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Thomas Hatch – States all resignations were due to personal life changes.
Victoria Gavel – States she would like to get some thank you cards for the board to sign.

d. Review/ Approve Mileage compensation policy.
Victoria Gavel – Motions to accept the Draft 2 “Accountable Plan” mileage policy.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

e. Appointment – Town Clerk
Jessica Picard – Motions to rescind the appointment of Lindsay Gagne as Town Clerk and appoint
Susan Bellerose as Town Clerk effective December 18th, 2023.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion,
Discussion, change the effective date to January 3rd, 2024
Jessica Picard – Rescinds her motion above.
Jessica Picard – Motions to rescind the appointment of Lindsay Gagne as Town Clerk and appoint
Susan Bellerose as Town Clerk effective January 3rd, 2024.

Page 3 of 8

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 2nd, 2024 – Lyman Town Hall 

OTHER 
Amber Swett – States she would like to address an issue and reads a prepared statement, see attached. 

EXCECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) Discussion with Town Manager regarding personnel matters
Thomas Hatch – Motions to go into executive session per MRSA 405 (A) Discussion with Town Manager regarding
personnel matters.
Amber Swett – Seconds the motion.
Lindsay Gagne – States for discussion a reminder to the board that anything discussed in executive session is
confidential and cannot be shared outside of executive session. Board members are elected officials and can be held
both jointly and separately liable.
Motion passes: 4-0-1 (Thomas Hatch, Ralph Blackington, Jessica Picard, Amber Swett in favor. Victoria Gavel
opposed).

Jessica Picard – Motions to come out of executive session. Thomas Hatch seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ADJOURN 

Jessica Picard – Motions to adjourn. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Rusty “Ralph” Blackington  

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch  

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

Victoria Gavel

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 8 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated January 2nd, 2024 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

Page 4 of 8

DRAFT



Page 5 of 8

DRAFT



Page 6 of 8

DRAFT



Page 7 of 8

DRAFT



Page 8 of 8

DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll









ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant



















Cable Television Ordinance 

Town of Lyman 

Adopted October 16th, 2023 

Amended: ______________ 

The Town of Lyman, acting through its municipal officers pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. 

§3008(2), hereby enacts the following Cable Television Ordinance:

Section 1 – PURPOSE 

The purpose for the ordinance is to provide for Town regulation and use of the cable television 

system including its construction, operation and maintenance in, along, upon, across, over and 

under the streets, alleys, public ways and public places now laid out or dedicated, and all 

extensions thereof and additions thereof in the Town of Lyman, including poles, wires, cables, 

underground conduits, manholes, conductors and fixtures necessary for the maintenance and 

operation in the Town of Lyman, of the cable television systems and to provide conditions 

accompanying the grant of franchise; and providing for the Town regulation of cable television 

operation.  

Section 2 – DEFINITIONS 

“Cable Television System” shall have the same meaning as defined in 30-A M.R.S.A. §3008 as 

the same may be amended.  

“Cable Television Company” shall mean any Video Service Provider, person, firm, or 

corporation owning, controlling, operating, managing, or leasing a cable television system 

within the Town of Lyman, sometimes hereinafter referred to as “the company.” 

“Town” shall mean the Town of Lyman, organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Maine and the area within its territorial limits. 

"Video service provider" means any person that directly or through one or more affiliates sells 

in the State access to video, audio or computer-generated or computer-augmented 

entertainment and directly or through one or more affiliates owns or operates facilities located 

in whole or in part in a municipality’s public rights-of-way that are used to provide those 

services, irrespective of the technology used to deliver such services. "Video service provider" 

includes, but is not limited to, a cable system operator and a common carrier that operates a 

cable television system. "Video service provider" does not include: 

ITEM #5: (a.) Franchise



(1) A commercial mobile service provider, as defined in 47 United States Code,

Section 332(d)(1); or

(2) A provider of an Internet access service, as defined in 47 United States Code,

Section 231(e)(4), with respect to the provision of the Internet service by the

provider.

Section 3 – FRANCHISE REQUIRED 

No person, firm or corporation shall install, maintain or operate within the Town or any of its 

public ways or other public areas any equipment or facilities for the operation of a cable 

television system unless a franchise authorizing the use of said public ways or areas has first 

been obtained pursuant to the provision of this Ordinance and unless said franchise is in full 

force and effect.  

Section 4 – FRANCHISE CONTRACT 

The municipal officers of the Town may contract on such terms, conditions and fees as they 

deem in the best interests of the Town and its residents with one or more Cable Television 

Companies for the operation of a cable television system within the Town, including the 

granting of a non-exclusive franchise for the operation thereof for a period not to exceed 

fifteen (15) years.  

Applicants for a franchise or franchise renewal shall pay a non-refundable filing fee of $500 to 

the Town to defray the cost of public notice and advertising expenses relating to such 

application. The applicants may also be assessed the cost of attorney fees incurred by the Town 

of Lyman in connection with the cable franchise application and agreement. The application 

shall be filed with the Town Clerk and shall contain such information as the Town may require 

including, but not limited to, a general description of the applicant’s proposed operation, a 

schedule of proposed charges, a statement detailing its previous two fiscal years, an estimated 

ten year financial projection of its proposed system, its annual Town franchise fee as required 

by the Town, and the basis for same, and a statement detailing the prior operational experience 

of the applicant in both the cable television and microwave service including that of its 

officers, management and staff to be associated with the proposed operations.  

Any franchise contract may be revoked by the municipal officers for good and sufficient cause 

as provided in the franchise contract, after due notice to the company and a public hearing 

thereon, with the right to appeal to the Superior Court under Rule 80B of the Maine Rules of 

Civil Procedure.  



Section 5 – PUBLIC HEARING 

Before issuance of a request for proposals, or during the franchise contract renewal process, the 

Town shall hold a public hearing with at least seven (7) days advance notice for the purpose of 

determining any special local needs or interest regarding cable television.  

Applications for a franchise to operate a CATV system in the Town and related 

documents are public records to be filed with and maintained by the Town pursuant to the State 

Freedom of Access Law, 1 M.R.S.A. § 401 et seq., as amended from time to time.  

Before authorizing the issuance of any such franchise contract, including an assignment or a 

renewal of a franchise contract, the municipal officers shall review the applicant’s character, 

financial and technical qualifications and the adequacy and feasibility of its qualifications to 

operate a cable television system within the Town, and shall conduct a public hearing thereon 

with at least seven (7) days advertised notice prior to said public hearing.  

Section 6 – PERFORMANCE BOND AND INSURANCE COVERAGE 

The Cable Television Company shall provide sufficient insurance to indemnify and hold 

harmless the Town of Lyman, its agents and its employees from and against all claims, 

damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising out of or resulting from the 

performance of the work, maintenance of the system and damages caused by components or 

portions thereof, provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to 

bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, 

including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and is caused in whole or in part by any negligent 

or willful act or omission of the Cable Television Company and anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by it or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. Upon the execution of any 

such franchise contract, the cable television company shall file a surety company performance 

bond in an amount to be determined by the Board of Selectmen conditioned upon the faithful 

performance of said contract and full compliance with any laws, ordinances, or regulations 

governing said franchise. Said performance bond shall remain in effect until the Cable 

Television Company has completed any construction or reconstruction of the system as set 

forth in the franchise contract. 

The Cable Television Company shall also, upon execution of any such franchise contract, 

provide evidence of insurance coverage as the Municipal Officers may require.  

Section 7 – COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS 

Cable Television Companies shall at all times comply with all applicable federal, State and 

local laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes and orders.  All applicable 

requirements of public and consumer protection laws affecting the provision of cable television 



services, including without limitation 30-A M.R.S.A. §3008 and§3010, as the same may be 

amended, are incorporated by reference. 

Section 8 -- SEVERABILITY 

Should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, such 

decision shall not invalidate any other section or provision of this Ordinance. 

This ordinance with amendments is effective upon its adoption by the Selectboard, Town of 

Lyman. 

Approved this _________ day of __________________, 2024. 

Town of Lyman by its Selectboard 

________________________Ralph Blackington 

________________________Thomas Hatch 

________________________Jessica Picard 

________________________Amber Swett 

________________________Victoria Gavel 



ITEM #5: (b.) MDOT updates



From: Town Manager
To: Ralph Blackington; Thomas Hatch; Jessica Picard; Amber Swett; Victoria Gavel
Subject: Fwd: [EXT] FW: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 9:21:15 AM
Attachments: image008.png

image009.png
image003.png
image004.png
image012.png
image015.png

Good morning, 

This is the route they will be using for the 202 project. 

Best regards, 

Lindsay Gagne 

Town Manager
FOAA Officer 

Town of Lyman
11 South Waterboro Rd
Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0462

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this
message in error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Jarrod Googins <jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 9:16:20 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>; Coombs, Douglas <douglas.coombs@maine.gov>
Cc: Blair Jr, Terry <Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov>; Macdougall, George <George.Macdougall@maine.gov>
Subject: FW: [EXT] FW: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

Grondin sent the below message and map image in regards to running overweight vehicles and the possible use
of local roads.

Thanks

Jarrod Googins, E.I.
Resident Engineer

Acorn Engineering, Inc
PO Box 3372
Portland, Maine 04104
www.acorn-engineering.com
https://www.instagram.com/acorn_engineering/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/acorn-civil-engineering/

B. 207.775.2655
C. 207.776.4266

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:RalphB@lyman-me.gov
mailto:thomash@lyman-me.gov
mailto:jessicap@lyman-me.gov
mailto:ambers@lyman-me.gov
mailto:victoriag@lyman-me.gov
http://www.acorn-engineering.com/
https://www.instagram.com/acorn_engineering/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/acorn-civil-engineering/








From: Ray Allard <r.allard@rjgrondin.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 6:18 AM
To: Jarrod Googins <jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com>; Weston Bergeron <w.bergeron@rjgrondin.com>
Cc: Hodgman, Ryan <Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXT] FW: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

Jarrod,

We do not intend to run any overweight equipment or trucks for the project.  Other than Davis Road which we
already have an agreement to access our pit we will only be traveling on state aid roads in Lyman. We will
update if the plan changes.

Thanks,

Ray Allard
General Superintendent

R. J. Grondin & Sons
11 Bartlett Road, Gorham, ME 04038
Office: (207) 854-1147 ext. 235
Cell:    (207) 749-5765
www.rjgrondin.com

From: Jarrod Googins <jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com> 
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 4:43 PM
To: Ray Allard <r.allard@rjgrondin.com>; Weston Bergeron <w.bergeron@rjgrondin.com>
Cc: Hodgman, Ryan <Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov>
Subject: [EXT] FW: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Ray and Weston,

See the below email chain, but the Lyman Select board wants to be kept informed on what local roads might be
used for overhaul limits depending on your material sources and if you will need to request a bond.

Thanks

Jarrod Googins, E.I.
Resident Engineer

Acorn Engineering, Inc
PO Box 3372
Portland, Maine 04104
www.acorn-engineering.com
https://www.instagram.com/acorn_engineering/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/acorn-civil-engineering/

http://www.rjgrondin.com/
mailto:jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com
mailto:r.allard@rjgrondin.com
mailto:w.bergeron@rjgrondin.com
mailto:Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.acorn-2Dengineering.com_&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=qvdn-VOha-gwNEEuZLBhZ4FuBbbuymG6OyfwY9xahJc&m=W1V5eDs3ImsLyAFAZceLxAuJORdLaxd5N--3IM8sXekUjLvrOXbJYXxqKegiv_rf&s=rxzOgLdL7qE880WWbsuvy_F0A6KPnrq5J2gv3WzKUF8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.instagram.com_acorn-5Fengineering_&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=qvdn-VOha-gwNEEuZLBhZ4FuBbbuymG6OyfwY9xahJc&m=W1V5eDs3ImsLyAFAZceLxAuJORdLaxd5N--3IM8sXekUjLvrOXbJYXxqKegiv_rf&s=DqsAjSz-deAeHK_otg_TWOHsrC5C44SNNfXHQzjDlDQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.linkedin.com_company_acorn-2Dcivil-2Dengineering_&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=qvdn-VOha-gwNEEuZLBhZ4FuBbbuymG6OyfwY9xahJc&m=W1V5eDs3ImsLyAFAZceLxAuJORdLaxd5N--3IM8sXekUjLvrOXbJYXxqKegiv_rf&s=bo4vfcmcjy-3zMqZkcoeOu1-WB2tEQg4zFxav3OUY0U&e=


B. 207.775.2655
C. 207.776.4266

From: Coombs, Douglas <Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov> 
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 2:05 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>; Hodgman, Ryan <Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov>; Jarrod
Googins <jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com>
Cc: Blair Jr, Terry <Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov>; Macdougall, George <George.Macdougall@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

Hi Jarrod and Ryan,

Please see the email below.  I believe R. J. Grondin and Sons will not be having any loads over legal road limits
for this project.  Would you please confirm and follow up Lyman Town Manager.  Thank you.

Doug

Mr. Douglas C. Coombs, PLS
Senior Project Manager – Highway Program
Maine DOT – Project Development
Phone: (207)215-4051

From: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> 
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 1:16 PM
To: Coombs, Douglas <Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Good afternoon,

Are there any updates where the contractor may be sourcing material from. The Lyman Select Board was
looking for a general idea if local roads would be used and if they may need to consider requesting a bond.

Thank you for any information you can provide.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager / Town
Clerk
FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

 townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

mailto:Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov
mailto:jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com
mailto:Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov
mailto:George.Macdougall@maine.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lyman-2Dme.gov_&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=qvdn-VOha-gwNEEuZLBhZ4FuBbbuymG6OyfwY9xahJc&m=W1V5eDs3ImsLyAFAZceLxAuJORdLaxd5N--3IM8sXekUjLvrOXbJYXxqKegiv_rf&s=b-P1Wl2T9rsYHlG6lOOziD9_M8G1kyBambtqW8JxeI8&e=


Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

From: Coombs, Douglas <Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 6, 2023 1:12 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Macdougall, George <George.Macdougall@maine.gov>; Blair Jr, Terry <Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov>;
Hodgman, Ryan <Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov>; Jarrod Googins <jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com>
Subject: RE: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

Good morning,

The Route 202 project was awarded to R. J. Grondin & Sons, Gorham, Maine on December 5th, 2023. 

The project Construction PM is Ryan Hodgman and project Resident is Jarrod Googins.  Jarrod will be setting up
a Pre-Construction meeting once R.J. Grondin & Sons has submitted a schedule and other pre-construction
documents.

I have included both Jarrod and Ryan on this email so they can invite you to the Pre-Construction meeting so
that your questions can be addressed.

Best,

Doug Coombs

Mr. Douglas C. Coombs, PLS
Senior Project Manager – Highway Program
Maine DOT – Project Development
Phone: (207)215-4051

From: Coombs, Douglas 
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 4:05 PM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov>
Cc: Macdougall, George <George.Macdougall@maine.gov>; Blair Jr, Terry <Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov>
Subject: RE: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

Good afternoon,

I will keep your email in my inbox and as soon as the project is awarded, I will get back to you as we discussed. 

Best,

Doug

Mr. Douglas C. Coombs, PLS
Senior Project Manager – Highway Program
Maine DOT – Project Development
Phone: (207)215-4051

mailto:Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:George.Macdougall@maine.gov
mailto:Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov
mailto:Ryan.Hodgman@maine.gov
mailto:jgoogins@acorn-engineering.com
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:George.Macdougall@maine.gov
mailto:Terry.BlairJr@maine.gov


From: Town Manager <townmanager@lyman-me.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 4:01 PM
To: Coombs, Douglas <Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov>
Subject: Reconstruction project Route 202 Lyman

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the State of Maine Mail System. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
Good afternoon,

When the information is available could you let me know who was officially awarded the bid for the
reconstruction project on Route 202. If it’s possible, could you verify if they will be using Lyman’s local roads at
all when sourcing materials. The Select Board was inquiring before they decided to approve use on the local
roads in Lyman or if they want to request a bond from DOT.

Thank you so much.

Best regards,

Lindsay Gagne

Town Manager / Town
Clerk
FOAA officer

11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0642 

207-499-7562

 townmanager@lyman-me.gov
   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

This email has been scanned for spam and viruses by Proofpoint Essentials. Click here to report this
email as spam.

Security Reminder: Do not click on links or open attachments unless you verify the sender. Discern malicious
emails by looking for clues: a) a forged or look alike email address b) poor grammar or misspellings c) unusual
requests or urgency. If you are unsure, please forward the email to IT.

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
mailto:Douglas.Coombs@maine.gov
mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__lyman-2Dme.gov_&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=qvdn-VOha-gwNEEuZLBhZ4FuBbbuymG6OyfwY9xahJc&m=W1V5eDs3ImsLyAFAZceLxAuJORdLaxd5N--3IM8sXekUjLvrOXbJYXxqKegiv_rf&s=b-P1Wl2T9rsYHlG6lOOziD9_M8G1kyBambtqW8JxeI8&e=
https://us1.proofpointessentials.com/app/report_spam.php?mod_id=11&mod_option=logitem&report=1&type=easyspam&k=k1&payload=53616c7465645f5fc703411c5b36ade76826176a3df36946f5fde3d5827ad1522efda3fbd89ed6b6a940a92147e2a8add2f43bbd225b155abe4ab59e75b42c089dece2a7dd799a25de9b674ad250ca534a6856761d886cf4a382284664abf1f166358f8ce1834337358e4c0392130e36b39cd680a9ff357a73d35527cd9bbc42013862e0e2d6eb235d9006346a4ddb9484806aba2d6b97fe6cdb6b4c71ef7ba3


LYMAN BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman, Maine  04002 

Telephone: (207) 247-0647  Email:  ceo@lyman-me.gov 

Building Department Quarterly Report, Fiscal Year 23/24 

First Quarter Second Quarter 

Revisions / Renewals ...................................... 2 ....................... 0 

New Residences ............................................. 7 ....................... 9 

Mobile Homes ................................................. 1 ....................... 2 

Additional Dwelling Units ................................. 4 ....................... 2 

Garages / Accessory Buildings ...................... 20 ...................... 9 

Additions ......................................................... 7 ....................... 3 

Renovations ................................................... 10 ..................... 15 

Tree Removals ................................................ 9 ....................... 6 

Decks / Porches .............................................. 5 ....................... 6 

Solar Arrays .................................................... 6 ....................... 4 

Septic Systems .............................................. 19 ..................... 12 

Plumbing  ....................................................... 15 ..................... 14 

Electrical ........................................................ 72 ..................... 56 

TOTAL PERMITS WRITTEN ......................... 178 ................... 137 

TOTAL INSPECTIONS CONDUCTED .......... 156 ................... 160 

INSPECTION MILEAGE ........................... 1165.80 ............ 1075.68 

ITEM #6: (c.) CEO Report

mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov


Report to Selectmen 

Month of December 2023 

2023-2024 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $7,871,329.42 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $    39,116.55 

Total Tax Commitment: $7.910,445.97 

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $    231.61 

Abatements Granted YTD: $      5,050.32  

Prior Year(s) Abatement(s) YTD: $       58.50 

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $69,265.07 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:   $  78,227.95 

Online Rapid Renewal Service      13,495.98 

Total Vehicle Excise   $  91,723.93  

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:   $    0.00  

Online Registration Service   $___      0.00 

Total Boat Excise    $            0.00 

Total Excise   $   9,1723.93 

Excise Tax Reimbursement      $     5,193.58    

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $  669,818.40 

Respectfully submitted:  Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #6: (d.) Excise Report




